CHAPTER 1
EARLY DAYS

We are this year celebrating the 80th anniversary of the laying of the Foundation Stone of our church - and
there will not be many of the present day Essingtonians who will remember it! Nevertheless, we are a mere
babe-in-arms when compared with our neighbours. The church at Bushbury, St. Mary's, was built in the 12th
century so that when our first 'lIron Church' was built in 1858 St. Mary's was already 700 years old.

Whilst therefore, we had no official identity as a parish in our own right until B0 years ago, we did have a
church of our own - though a mission church of Bushbury - from 1858,

Before that date the history of the Church in Essington is largely 8 matter of conjecture. Certainly there would
have been Anglicans and certainly if they wanted to attend Divine Service or to get 'hatched, matched or
dispatched' they would have to make the journey to Bushbury [or perhaps Bloxwich or Short Heath) - and in the
middle of the nineteenth century that would have entailed a major effort.  Perhaps small groups of committed
Christians met in each other's homes or perhaps they used a room in the new school (built 184B]).

White's directory of 1851 tells us that "Essington is a place of 1600 acres and 629 souls. The school for
boys, girls and infants was built in 1846 and is licensed for Divine Services performed by the Curate on Sunday
mornings and Tuesday evenings. The Wesleyans have a Chapel built in 1834."
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Apart from this, previous to 18539 all is supposition. What we do know is that in the years immediately before
18589 a more than usually energetic Vicar of Bushbury, Rev. William Lister, prevailed upon Squire Vernon to
make available (but only on a lease!] a piece of land adjacent to the school, newly built in Hobnock Road, for the
building of @ Church. Rev. Lister was, by sll accounts, a remarkable and well loved man. During his
incumbency he increased the number of services at Bushbury from just one Sunday morning service, revitalised
the Sunday School, arranged educational lectures for the parishioners, started Friendly Societies, and Clothing
Clubs and generally livened the place up. The new Church at Essington was just one of his many ventures
during his 25 years of office (1839-64).

The 'lron Church’ as it was officially known, was built and licensed for Divine Services [including Holy Communion
but not marriages) in 1858, For those who do not remember the building, it was situated next to the schoal
on the corner of Hobnock Road and Bognop Road, on a site now occupied by five modern houses. The site

occupied an area of 0.282 acres.

The building had no great architectural virtues. It was to all intents and purposes a large shed, 26 yards long
and 10 yards wide, clad and roofed with sheets of corrugated iron, painted green and with a chancel at one end
and an entrance porch at the other.

There is no record of the interior furnishings in the early days but they would undoubtedly be modest, probably
lit by oil lamps and quite possibly without any heating at all, though by 1808 permission was being sought for
the erection of a coal house , so presumably the church had acquired some form of heating. Worshippers were
hardy in those days! Nevertheless, despite its unimposing exterior, inside were panelled walls, polished pews,
guite beautiful old hanging oil lamps and generally it gave the impression of being clean and well cared for. By
the time of its demolition in the 1960's it had acquired electric lighting, two large coke stoves, running water
and a kitchen and toilets.

The Iron Church, Essington.
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Once again there are no written records of the Church activities (the first minute book available starts in 1908)
and so our imagination must fill in the details. There would no doubt be Harvest Festivals, Sunday School
Anniversaries, Summer Fetes and Christmas Fayres, maney making activities galore - and lots of headaches in
generating sufficient income to pay the bills, modest as they would be.

Interior of The Iron Church, Essington.

There was a mini-crisis in 1891 when the lease for the ground on which the church stood came up for renewal.
The document which the Squire submitted for the churchwardens' signature described the plot as being 26
yards long and 10 yards wide - the exact size of the church building! And furthermore he reduced the period of
notice from 12 months to 6 months! When the vicar and churchwardens queried this, the vicar of Bushbury
made the pointed remark that "The Church was built by public subscription towards which the Bushbury people
largely contributed to benefit the people of Essington.” The Squire relented to the extent that the period of
notice reverted to 12 months but he maintained his insistence on the size of the plot. reasoning “that he might
want to put a building on the land outside the church but that they could carry on using the ground as before.”
As the Vicar and Churchwardens paid a rent of only 1/- per annum they were hardly in a position to argue!

Nevertheless, regular attempts were made afterwards to buy the whole plot but the Squire would not budge.
Eventually in 1946 the then Squire agreed to sell - at 3 /- per square yard.

Page 3.



§$§ Ay UONTIIFEWOD INO jO PUT

%hcm put paspuny 1y puesuoy) auo pior ANo jo dBag Ayl ut K@ haa\ﬁﬂti?

S ALV CPIXE owumasey aq o1 (asn apy Jeyaq sy Ul yoIys) [2ag Ing) PASNTD asvy am jodtays ANOIWLILSAL

N1 -wap pue uny o3 SuSuolsq pue anp aojorasay sousinbiad pue ‘sigord ‘siySu (v siossadons sy pue piesasoje

—_ jo e k.u..\\.uv.v\\ oy 01 Fmatasas pue Juires os{e pue ‘PlAYYOIT JO YIInYD) [BIpAIED
- | L4
o jo inouoq pue Lyuu mn. a1 pue siyfu edossidgy ino siossacong Jno pue saAfesing o sfeafe Sulng Gauusm o Lue uy
10 astmtayo jou pue ‘poeiSusy jo younys ayy jo Aauqny eévw Suipsoooe ¢
¢

o AT B (7L, AL FS, FHE AL T,
“ » %w“ § op * @rvid) Eﬂ&a Enﬂm_ o} pasuaslf pue W_Eon% mmm.?ﬂ_ sajrins) 10 sﬂﬂmﬁ_n o .Eﬂ"

- w é& pod QW..? oyun fuoyiny pue 2ouani ‘] [0 1no juedd pue aad Lqauay o ‘o lo
Leur 3 __,S.H £q s avj su ___Eoow_mm.. pue Liempigy amod dno jo amuna £q ‘syussard ssap Aq pue quesd o) 19 1Snop aavyy

‘uonesapisucd snouas dno -oqup sasmard sy Supym proyyary jo .__o.._wm %m %w_.a atp

. 11 JX MONY¥ MON

7% %gﬁ e Z NN parege ayp  ow gnx@., \m\o iy g
LY ETR VT Y &m\mmm\ el ML ey oy SVIUTHM

"ORILEENE)

‘swod (eus sjpuasad asayy woym of sdead wensuyy (¢ oL ‘pruyorT jo doysig o] uossumiad aulalg Aq H—mmm
4

Page 4.



	Page number  001
	Page number  002
	Page number  003
	Page number  004

